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No. XLIV. (A.D. 1897.)

An Act to enable the Governor to declare certain lands in the
parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester to be public
thoroughfares ; to provide for the closing of Wharf-road
in that parish ; and to extend the term for which leases of
certain lands in that parish may be granted under sections
89 and 90 of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and section
46 of the Crown Lands Act of 1895. [Assented to, 10th
December, 1897.]

W HEREAS it is desirable in the public interests for the purpose Preamble.

of constructing and establishing a graving-dock and engineer-
ing works in connection therewith at Stockton to lease certain Crown
lands in the parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, for a longer
term than is authorised by the Crown Lands Acts, and to open certain
lands as roads, and to close other roads in that parish: Be it therefore
enacted by the Queen’s Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the
advice and consent of the Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly
of New South Wales in Parliament assembled, and by the authority of
the same, as follows :—

1. The Governor may, by notification in the Gazette, declare Lands in Schedules

the lands described in Schedules A and B hereto to be public thorough- e ;’;ageb;ubnc
fares. thoroughfares, and

0 ‘W harf-road shall
n thereupon be closed.
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On and after the date of such notification the road known as
Wharf-road, and comprising the land described in Schedule C hereto
shall be closed, and shall be free from all rights of way by the public.

Lenss of Iand in 2. The term for which any lease of any Crown land described in
gf_a‘fz;ffci extendea Schedule D hereto may be granted under the provisions of section
form. - ° cighty-nine or section ninety of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and

section forty-six of the Crown Lands Act of 1895, may exceed twenty-
cight but shall not exceed ninety-nine years.

Short title. 3. This Act may be cited as the *Stockton Graving-dock
(Leasing) Act, 1897.” -

SCHEDULE A.

Eastern Division—TLand district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area twenty-one and a half perches, being part of
the seventy acres at Pirale Point originally granted to James Mitchell : Commencing
on the south-west side of Stockton-street ab its intersection with the northern side of
Factory-street ; and bounded thence on the south by part of that side of Factory-street
bearing north eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes west three chains fifty-eight links;
thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten degrees thirty-seven minutes east
forty links ; thence on the north by a line bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four
minutes east three chains twenty-six links to the south-west side of Stockton street
aforesaid ; and thenge on the north-east by part of that side of that street bearing south
thirty-two degrees ten minutes east forty-seven links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE B.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area thirty-six and three-quarter perches, being
part of the seventy acres at Pirate Point originally granted to James Mitchell: Com-
mencing on the southern side of Factory-street at a point bearing north eighty-nine
degrees forty-four minutes west and distant three chains six links from its intersection
with the south-west side of Stocktun-street; and bounded thence on the south-east by a
line bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven minutes west two chains sixty-three links ;
thence on the south-west by a line bearing north- fifty-three degrees thirty-five minutes
west one chain eleven links; thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten
degrees thirty-seven minutes east one chain ninety-seven links to the southern side of
Factory-street aforesaid ; and thence on the north by part of that side of that street
bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes east one chain two links, to the
point of commencement.

SCHEDULE C.

Eastern Division—TLand district of Newecastle, partly within the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester: Commencing on the south-west
side of Stockton-street at a point bearing south thirty.two degrees ten minutes east
and distant two chains sixteen links from its intersection with the southern side of
Factory-street; and bounded thence on the north-west by lines bearing south seventy-
three degrees thirty-six minutes west five chains twenty-one links and south forty-three
degrees fifty-four minutes west two chains sixty-two links; thence on the south-west
by a line bearing south forty-six degrees six minutes east one chain; thence on the
south-east by lines bearing north forty-three degrees fifty-four minutes east three
chains fifty-two links and north seventy-three degrees thirty-six minutes east four
chains five links to the south-west side of Stockton-street aforesaid ; thence on the
north-east by part of that side of that street bearing north thirty-two degrees ten
minutes west forty-four links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE
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Stockton Graving-dock (Leasing).

SCHEDULE D.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newecastle, adjoining the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area three acres two roods two
perches: Commencing at the intersection of the southerly prolongation of the west side of
Stockton-street with the northern limit line of reclamation of Port Hunter, determined by
the Harbours and Rivers Department, being a point bearing north eighty degrees thirty
minutes west and distant one thousand three hundred and ninety-four links from the
south-east corner of James Mitchell’s seventy acres grant; and bounded thence on part cf
the east by the southerly prolongation of the west side of Stockton-street and part of
the west side of that street bearing north seven degrees fifty-five minutes west three
hundred and fifteen links; thence on part of the north by a line bearing south eighty
degrees forty-five minutes west forty-three links; thence on the remainder of the east
by a line bearing north twenty-two degrees nineteen minutes west two hundred and
fifty-three links ; thence on the remainder of the north by lines bearing north seventy-
four degrees eight minutes west three hundred and twenty-four links, and north fifty-
three degrees thirty-five minutes west three hundred and five links; thence on the west
by the east side of a projected new street bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven
minutes west four hundred and seventy-eight links to the mnorthern limit line of
reclamation of Port Hunter; and thence on the south by the last-mentioned limit
line of reclamation, being a carve of one thousand five hundred feet radius for an
easterly length of six hundred and thirty-eight links, and a line bearing south seventy-
three degrees fifteen minutes east two hundred and sixty-two links, to the point of
commencement.

By Authority : WiLLiam ArpLEGATE GULLICK, Government Printer, Sydney, 1397.
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1 Certify that this PusLic BILy, which originated in the LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, has finally
passed the LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL and the LEGISLATTVE ASSEMBLY of NEW SouTH WALES.

Legislative Assembly Chamber, F. W. WEBB,
Sydney, 9 December, 1897. Clerk of the Legislative Assembly.
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No. XLIV. (A.D. 1897.)

An Act to enable the Governor to declare certain lands in the
parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester to be public
thoroughfares ; to provide for the closing of Wharf-road
in that parish ; and to extend the term for which leases of
certain lands in that parish may be granted under sections
89 and 90 of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and section
46 of the Crown Lands Act of 1895. [Assented to, 10th
December, 1897.]

' HEREAS it is desirable in the public interests for the purpose Preambe.
of constructing and establishing a graving-dock and engineer-

ing works in connection therewith at Stockton to lease certain Crown
lands in the parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, for a longer
term than is authorised by the Crown Lands Acts, and to open certain
lands as roads, and to close other roads in that parish: Be it therefore
enacted by the Queen’s Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the
advice and consent of the Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly
of New South Wales in Parliament assembled, and by the authority of
the same, as follows :—

1. The Governor may, by notification in the Gazette, declare Lands in Schedules
the lands described in Schedules A and B hereto to be public thorough- 4 3248 ;‘;“ge";ubhc
fares. thoroughfares, and

‘Wharf-road shall
On thereupon be closed.

I have examined this Bill, and find it to correspond in all respects with the Bill
as finally passed by both Houses. :

WILLTAM McCOURT,
Chairman of Committees of the Legislative Assembly.
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Stockton Graving-dock (Leasing).

On and after the date of such notification the road known as
‘Wharf-road, and comprising the land described in Schedule C hereto
shall be closed, and shall be free from all rights of way by the public.
Lease of land in 2. The term for which any lease of any Crown land described in
::ﬁl‘fe‘g‘ﬁ may be Schedule D hereto may be granted under the provisions of section
term. eighty-nine or section ninety of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and
section forty-six of the Crown Lands Act of 1895, may exceed twenty-
eight but shall not exceed ninety-nine years.
Short title. 3. This Act may be cited as the ¢ Stockton Graving-dock
(Leasing) Act, 1897.”

SCHEDULE A.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area twenty-one and a half perches, being part of
the seventy acres at Pirate Point originally granted to James Mitchell: Commencing
on the south-west side of Stockton-street at its intersection with the northern side of
Factory-street ; and bounded thence on the south by part of that side of Factory-street
bearing north eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes west three chains fifty-eight links ;
thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten degrees thirty-seven minutes east
forty links ; thence on the north by a line bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four
minutes east three chains twenty-six links to the south-west side of Stockton-street
aforesaid ; and thence on the north-east by part of that side of that street bearing south
thirty-two degrees ten minutes east forty-seven links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE B.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area thirty-six and three-quarter perches, being
part of the seventy acres at Pirate Point originally granted to James Mitchell: Com-
mencing on the southern side of Factory-street at a point bearing north eighty-nine
degrees forty-four minutes west and distant three chains six links from its intersection
with the south-west side of Stocktun-street; and bounded thence on the south-east by a
line bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven minutes west two chains sixty-three links ;
thence on the south-west by a line bearing north fifty-three degrees thirty-five minutes
west one chain eleven links; thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten
degrees thirty-seven minutes east one chain ninety-seven links to the southern side of
Factory-street aforesaid; and thence on the north by part of that side of that street
bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes east one chain two links, to the
point of commencement.

SCHEDULE C.

Eastern Division—Tand district of Newcastle, partly within the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester: Commencing on the south-west
side of Stockton-street at a point bearing south thirty-two degrees ten minutes east
and distant two chains sixteen links from its intersection with the southern side of
Factory-street; and bounded thence on the north-west by lines bearing south seventy-
three degrees thirty-six minutes west five chains twenty-one links and south forty-three
degrees fifty-four minutes west two chains sixty-two links; thence on the south-west
by a line bearing south forty-six degrees six minutes east one chain; thence on the
south-east by lines bearing north forty-three degrees fifty-four minutes east three
chains fifty-two links and north seventy-three degrees thirty-six minutes east four
chains five links to the south-west side of Stockton-street aforesaid; thence on the
north-east by part of that side of that street bearing morth thirty-two degrees ten
minutes west forty-four links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE
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Stockton Graving-dock (Leasing).

SCHEDULE D.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, adjoining the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area three acres two roods two
perches : Commencing at the intersection of the southerly prolongation of the west side of
Stockton-street with the northern limit line of reclamation of Port Hunter, determined by
the Harbours and Rivers Department, being a point bearing north eighty degrees thirty
minutes west and distant one thousand three hundred and ninety-four links from the
south-east corner of James Mitchell’s seventy acres grant; and bounded thence on part of
the east by the southerly prolongation of the west side of Stockton-street and part of
the west side of that street bearing north seven degrees fifty-five minutes west three
hundred and fifteen links; thence on part of the north by a line bearing south eighty
degrees forty-five minutes west forty-three links ; thence on the remainder of the east
by a line bearing north twenty-two degrees nineteen minutes west two hundred and
fifty-three links ; thence on the remainder of the north by lines bearing north seventy-
four degrees eight minutes west three hundred and twenty-four links, and north fifty-
three degrees thirty-five minutes west three hundred and five links; thence on the west
by the east side of a projected new street bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven
minutes west four hundred and seventy-eight links to the northern limit line of
reclamation of Port Hunter; and thence on the south by the last-mentioned limit
line of reclamation, being a curve of one thousand five hundred feet radius for an
easterly length of six hundred and thirty-eight links, and a line bearing south seventy-
three degrees fifteen minutes east two hundred and sixty-two links, to the point of
commencement.

In the name and on the behalf of Her Majesty I assent to this Act.

FREDK. M. DARLEY,
Government House, Lieutenant- Governor.
Sydney, 10th December, 1897.







T'his PuBLIC BILL originated in the LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, and, having this day
passed, is now ready for presentation to the LuGisuaTive COUNCIL for its concurrence.

Legislative Assembly Chamber, F. W. WEBB, :
Sydney, 3 December, 1897, A.M. Clerk of the Legislative Assembly.
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No. . (A.D. 1897.)

An Act to enable the Governor to declare certain lands in the
parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester to be public
thoroughfares ; to provide for the closing of Wharf-road
in that parish ; and to extend the term for which leases of
certain lands in that parish may be granted under sections
89 and 90 of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and section
46 of the Crown Lands Act of 1895.

W7 HEREAS it is desirable in the public interests for the purpose preambie.
of constructing and establishing a graving-dock and engineer-
ing works in connection therewith at Stockton to lease certain Crown
lands in the parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, for a longer

5 term than is authorised by the Crown Lands Acts, and to open certain

lands as roads, and to close other roads in that parish: Be it therefore
enacted by the Queen’s Most Excellent Majesty, by and with the
advice and consent of the Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly
of New South Wales in Parliament assembled, and by the authority cf

10 the same, as follows :—

1. The Governor may, by notification in the Gazette, declare Lands in Schedules

the lands described in Schedules A and B hereto to'be public thorough- 4 2»d B may be

declared to be public
fares. thoroughfares, and

SO0-—= On Wharf-road shall
thereupon be closed.
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Stockton Graving-dock (Leasing).

On and after the date of such notification the road known as

" Wharf-road, and comprising the land described in Schedule C hereto
shall be closed, and shall be free from all rights of way by the public.

2. The term for which any lease of any Crown land described in Lease of land in
5 Schedule D hereto may be granted under the provisions of section 232;3;}13 i e
eighty-nine or section ninety of the Crown Lands Act of 1884, and term. .’
section forty-six of the Crown Lands Act of 1895, may exceed twenty-
eight but shall not exceed ninety-nine years.

3. This Act may be cited as the Stockton Graving-dock Short title.

10 (Leasing) Act, 1897.”

SCHEDULE A.

Tastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area twenty-one and a half perches, being part of
the seventy acres at Pirate Point originally granted to James Mitchell : Commencing

15 on the south-west side of Stockton-street at its intersection with the northern side of
Factory-street ; and bounded thence on the south by part of that side of Factory-street
bearing north eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes west three chains fifty-eight links ;
thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten degrees thirty-seven minutes east
forty links ; thence on the north by a line bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four

90 minutes east three chains twenty-six links to the south-west side of Stockton-street
aforesaid ; and thence on the north-east by part of that side of that street bearing south .
thirty-two degrees ten minutes east forty-seven links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE B.

Fastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, private town of Stockton, parish
95 of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area thirty-six and three-quarter perches, being
part of the seventy acres at Pirate Point originally granted to James Mitchell: Com-
mencing on the southern side of Factory-street at a point bearing north eighty-nine
degrees forty-four minutes west and distant three chains six links from its intersection
with the south-west side of Stocktun-street ; and bounded thence on the south-east by a
3() line bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven minutes west two chains sixty-three links ;
thence on the south-west by a line bearing north fifty-three degrees thirty-five minutes
west one chain eleven links; thence on the north-west by a line bearing north ten
degrees thirty-seven minutes east one chain ninety-seven links to the southern side of
Factory-street aforesaid; and thence on the north by part of that side of that street
85 bearing south eighty-nine degrees forty-four minutes east one chain two links, to the
point of commencement.

SCHEDULE C.

Eastern Division— Land district of Newcastle, partly within the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester: Commencing on the south-west
0 side of Stockton-street at a point bearing south thirty-two degrees ten minutes east
and distant two chains sixteen links from its intersection with the southern side of
Factory-street ; and bounded thence on the north-west by lines bearing south seventy-
three degrees thirty-six minutes west five chains twenty-one links and south forty-three
degrees fifty-four minutes west two chains sixty-two links; thence on the south-west
45 by a line bearing south forty-six degrees six minutes east one chain; thence on the
south-east by lines bearing north forty-three degrees fifty-four minutes east three
chains fifty-two links and north seventy-three degrees thirty-six minutes east four
chains five links to the south-west side of Stockton-street aforesaid; thence on the
north-east by part of that side of that street bearing morth thirty-two degrees ten
50 minutes west forty-four links, to the point of commencement.

SCHEDULE
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Stockton Graving-dock (Leasing).

SCHEDULE D.

Eastern Division—Land district of Newcastle, adjoining the private town of
Stockton, parish of Stockton, county of Gloucester, area three acres two roods two
perches: Commencing at the intersection of the southerly prolongation of the west side of

5 Stockton-street with the northern limit line of reclamation of Port Hunter, determined by
the Harbours and Rivers Department, being a point bearing north eighty degrees thirty
minutes west and distant one thousand three hundred and ninety-four links from the
south-east corner of James Mitchell’s seventy acres grant; and bounded thence on part of
the east by the southerly prolongatien of the west side of Stockton-street and part of

10 the west side of that street bearing north seven degrees fifty-five minutes west three
hundred and fifteen links; thence on part of the north by a line bearing south eighty
degrees forty-five minutes west forty-three links; thence on the remainder of the east
by a line bearing north twenty-two degrees nineteen minutes west two hundred and
fifty-three links ; thence on the remainder of the north by lines bearing north seventy-

15 four degrees eight minutes west three hundred and twenty-four links, and north fifty-
three degrees thirty-five minutes west three hundred and five links ; thence on the west
by the east side of a projected new street bearing south ten degrees thirty-seven
minutes west four hundred and seventy-eight links to the northern limit line of
reclamation of Port Hunter; and thence on the south by the last-mentioned limit

20 line of reclamation, being a curve of one thousand five hundred feet radius for an
easterly length of six hundred and thirty-eight links, and a line bearing south seventy-
three degrees fifteen minutes east two hundred and sixty-two links, to the point of
commencement. i

* Sydney: William Applegate Gullick, Government Printer.—1897.
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